New Milford Board of Education RECEIVED m
Operations Sub-Committee Meeting Minutes ) Ll D

November 12, 2025 7:15 pm 05T A1

4 THE
Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center e e il
HEV B:LFOR0.CT
Present: Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach, Chairperson
Mr. Tom O’Brien
Mr. Brian McCauley
Absent: Mr. Eric Hansell
Also Present: | Dr. Janet Parlato, Superintendent of Schools
Ms. Holly Hollander, Assistant Superintendent of Schools
Mr. Anthony Giovannone, Director of Finance
Mr. Matthew Cunningham, Director of Facilities
1. Call to Order Call to Order
The New Milford Board of Education Operations
Subcommittee was called to order at 7:15pm by
Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach, Chairperson.
2. Public Comment Public Comment
There was none.
3. Discussion and Possible Action Discussion and Possible Action
A. | Monthly Reports A. Monthly Reports
1. Budget Position dated October 31, 2025 1. Budget Position dated
2. Purchase Resolution D-800 October 31, 2025
3. Request for Budget Transfers 2. Purchase Resolution D-800
3. Request for Budget
Mr. Giovannone stated payroll encumbrances are Transfers

now in place. We were at 93.7% last year
encumbered and we are at 94.1% this year. On
page 4 of 4 the Capital Reserve withdrawal of
$1,045,189 is what is shown in MUNIS as of
October 31st. It was done prior to our board
meeting in October, but the October meeting
reviews activity in September. Mr. O’Brien asked
if there were any other pending withdrawals. Mr.
Giovannone stated there are no pending
withdrawals but there is a pending deposit and the
payment to ESG will come from that. Mrs.
Faulenbach asked if items such as the new security
grant set aside are benchmark numbers, and if
those numbers come in lower they should fall to
the Capital Reserve. Mr. Giovannone stated not
exactly. Finance is currently doing sweeps of those
accounts. Finance is updating those balances and
looking at any prior year money linked to those




New Milford Board of Education

Operations Sub-Committee Meeting Minutes

November 12, 2025 7:15pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 2

withdrawals, if they do not cover current year
projects. If there are funds still in one of those
accounts, it cannot be used for something
completely different. For example, last year there
was a line item for inclusive playground equipment
for $20,000. The district spent all but $113 of it,
but there is no playground equipment that costs
$113. That money will not be used any further for
playground equipment, but we also cannot
repurpose that for something else.

Mr. Giovannone stated there are no transfers at this
time.

Mr. Giovannone there is a possible transfer in the
Purchase Resolution. There is a line item for
contracted services for nurses and para positions
that have not been filled. The district had money
with contracted services appropriated through
salaries. Since it was very fluid there was no need
to bring forward a transfer, but they are coming to
a point where the district will have to decide who
we will keep as a direct hire and who we source
through the contracted services.

Dr. Parlato stated the positions are posted but the
pool of candidates isn’t there. Mr. Giovannone
stated in the coming months we will take money
out of the para educator and nurse line item, to put
it into contracted services and pupil personnel. Mr.
O’Brien asked if contracted services are more
expensive than salaries. Mr. Giovannone stated yes
and the reason it is going before the board is
because it’s going across major object codes.

Dr. Parlato stated that there is not a school district
in our state that has all the paras it needs.

Mr. McCauley noted the increase in tuition for Ed
Advance. It has gone up significantly over the last
5 years, even though it is one of the more
reasonable companies. Dr. Parlato replied that she
agreed that the tuition had increased but there are
also more kids requiring more services.

Motion passed to bring the
Operations Subcommittee monthly




New Milford Board of Education Page 3
Operations Sub-Committee Meeting Minutes

November 12, 2025 7:15pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Mpr. O’Brien moved to bring the Operations reports to the Board of Education
Subcommittee monthly reports to the Board of for discussion and possible action.
Education for discussion and possible action, Motion passed unanimously.
seconded by Mr. McCauley. The motion passed
unanimously.

4. Items of Information Items of Information

A. | Employment Report - November 2025 A. Employment Report -

Dr. Parlato stated there had not been much November 2025

turnover. They have hired a Special Education
teacher, a Spanish teacher and a Social Studies
teacher. Mr. O’Brien asked Dr. Parlato to provide
the board with the number of resignations they had
that were due to the budget issues. Dr. Parlato
stated she would provide that and agreed, it created
anxiety and caused people to leave.

B. | Enrollment Report - November 2025 B. Enrollment Report -
Dr. Parlato stated the projection is still close. Every November 2025
district in the state except 2 are experiencing
declines because of birthrates. There is a plan to do
a new enrollment study in February.

C. | Update on Transportation C. Update on Transportation
Mr. Giovannone began by stating any
transportation route request changes were denied.
There was one request that was denied for driver
removal. There have been no 3rd tiered bus runs.
There are now more spare drivers at the depot with
more local people directly employed by All Star.
There have been 13 penalties against All Star.

Mr. Giovannone stated he and Dr. Parlato have had
regular meetings with the new members of upper
management and that has alleviated many issues.
There have also been route adjustments; roughly
90% have changed. The variance for families in
pick up and drop off times is less than 5 minutes.
The new routes began November 3rd and the
changes are going well. During that time the
StopFinder app was paused but it is live again.
Mrs. Faulenbach noted everything seemed positive
but hoped there might be a savings to
transportation given the buses are not at full
capacity. Dr. Parlato explained it is hard to save
with two tiered runs. Mrs. Faulenbach asked how
many buses were running. Mr. Giovannone stated




New Milford Board of Education

Operations Sub-Committee Meeting Minutes

November 12, 2025 7:15pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 4

44. Dr. Parlato stated having the new
administration is making a big difference.

5. Public Comment
There was none.

Public Comment

6. Adjourn

Mr. McCauley moved to adjourn the meeting at
7:50pm, seconded by Mr. O’Brien, and passed
unanimously.

Adjourn

Motion made and passed
unanimously to adjourn the
meeting at 7:50 pm.

Respectfully submitted:

Wondy faleddah

Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach
Chairman, Operations Subcommittee




New Milford Board of Education

Facilities Sub-Committee Meeting Minutes

November 12, 2025 6:30pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Present: Mr. Tom O’Brien, Chairperson
Mrs. Wendy Faulenbach
Mr. Brian McCauley

Absent: Mr. Eric Hansell

Also Present:

Dr. Janet Parlato, Superintendent of Schools

Mr. Matthew Cunningham, Director of Facilities
Mr. Anthony Giovannone, Director of Finance

Ms. Holly Hollander, Assistant Superintendent of Schools

Call to Order

The New Milford Board of Education Facilities
Sub-Committee meeting was called to order at
6:30pm by Mr. Tom O’Brien, Chairperson.

Call to Order

Public Comment
There was none.

Public Comment

Items for Information
RFP NMHS Tennis Courts Design/Build

Mr. Cunningham stated they conducted a site visit
yesterday and several vendors came. The bids will
open December 19th. It is currently posted on CT
Source. Mr. O’Brien asked if there was a drainage
problem. Mr. Cunningham stated he was not sure
if drainage was a problem so much as once the
asphalt has been compromised the capillary action
will pick up any water beneath it. There is no
evidence that the outside curtain drain or the drain
that runs underneath has been compromised. If
during the remediation process we come across
that something has been compromised, we’ll need
to know the pricing beforehand.

RFP Central Offices A&E

Mr. Cunningham stated there was a site visit done
and the project will need to be broken into 3

phases. The first phase is the comprehensive

3. Items for Information
A. RFP NMHS Tennis
Courts Design/Build

B. RFP Central Offices
A&E




New Milford Board of Education Page 2
Facilities Sub-Committee MeetingMinutes

November 12, 2025 6:30pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

design. The second phase is the construction. The
third phase would be based upon the overall
design plan. Hopefully construction will begin this
summer. The bids are opening December 12th.

C. | RFP NES Hydrants Engineering C. RFP NES Hydrants
Mr. Cunningham stated the hydrants have been in Engineering

place since 1982 and the Fire Marshal recently
asked for a more contemporary hydrant. Mr.
Cunningham stated he put together an RFP for
engineering services to better understand cost. The
concern is the current set up is not pressurized.
Water would have to go through a pump truck.
The RFP should help give guidance on what the
work would consist of.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked if this was just for
Northville. Mr. Cunningham stated yes, currently
there’s a fire pond but it does not create enough
pressure. Mrs. Faulenbach asked if all the school
buildings had hydrants. Mr. Cunningham stated
that Hill and Plain does not, but there’s a hydrant
right across the street. The other schools have
private hydrants. Schaghticoke Middle School’s
hydrant is pressurized. Mrs. Faulenbach asked if
this was violating any state statute. Mr.
Cunningham stated it was not, and it’s not
uncommon for rural areas to have a fire pond. It’s
not necessarily a code compliance issue.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the town would be
looking at their fire hydrants as well, since it’s
requested by the town. Mr. Cunningham stated he
was not sure. Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the district
checks the hydrants regularly. Mr. Cunningham
stated yes, they are checked annually.

Mr. O’Brien asked how Schaghticoke’s hydrant is
pressurized. Mr. Cunningham stated that when
they did construction in the 90’s they added it in.
For Northville, the construction would include
having to tap into the 12 inch water main in the
street. There were renovations at Northville in the
90’s and that element of the project never came to




New Milford Board of Education Page 3
Facilities Sub-Committee MeetingMinutes

November 12, 2025 6:30pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

fruition. To verify this, an underground survey
was done and there is no hookup to the main
street.

Mrs. Faulenbach stated every step taken should be
memorialized, including where the money will be
coming from. Mr. Cunningham stated that he
cannot speak to that at the moment. There was no
cost to get the RFP’s.

Mrs. Faulenbach stated that she believes this is a
town situation and not a Board situation. We’re
going into budget season and this is not a
budgeted item. Mr. Cunningham stated, if the
numbers come back and they are beyond what we
can cover then it becomes a 2026 project. If it
needs to be done in a more expeditious manner, it
may need to be a joint effort. Dr. Parlato pointed
out that there is no deficiency and the district is
not out of compliance. Mr. Cunningham, stated
that was correct, it is known that the set up has
been this way since 1982. The hydrants
themselves are operational. Mrs. Faulenbach
stated moving into next year, sitting down with the
town to go over items like this is important. It
keeps everyone collaborating, especially with
things like the tennis courts and fire hydrants. The
whole town is facing this. Mr. O’Brien stated that
this is not an issue that anyone needs to worry
about. Mr. Cunningham stated that was correct. It
was more the Fire Marshal making sure the local
fire services know there is a lack of pressure and
the middle school is an option since it does have
pressure. Also, at Hill and Plain, the hydrant is
across the street and under the purview of

Aquarion.
D. | RFP NMHS Culinary A&E D. RFP NMHS Culinary
Mr. Cunningham stated they had a site visit with A&E

over half a dozen vendors. The bid would open up
December 12th. This would be just opening up a
construction plan. Mr. O’Brien asked if a possible
space in the building had been identified. Mr.
Cunningham stated that they think they found a
space but need to make sure they have enough




New Milford Board of Education Page 4
Facilities Sub-Committee MeetingMinutes

November 12, 2025 6:30pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

space for instructional and cooking, as well as
proximity to utilities. There’s an electrical
demand, drainage, grease intercepters, fire
suppression, and such. It’s hard to find a space that
covers all those needs. Mrs. Faulenbach asked if
the district would have to change the structure of
their CIRMA policy if they start offering
something such as a cooking class to students. Mr.
Giovannone stated no. Dr. Parlato stated in her
previous district they started a culinary program
and did not have to change anything with their
policy. It’s more a conversation with the Fire
Marshal. Depending on air flow there are certain
types of cooking you can and cannot do.

Mr. O’Brien asked how quickly the program could
get up and running. Mr. Cunningham stated
construction could be expensive. There are
fixtures and other items to be purchased. It
probably means bringing in a 3rd party to speak to
the equipment. The process is very similar to the
construction in a house. Once you know the size
of your appliances, then you can understand where
the cabinets can go and size.

Mr. O’Brien asked how the curriculum would
come together. Ms. Hollander stated it would most
likely be proposed in the fall and written over the
winter. Dr. Parlato stated it would also be
important to speak to what we might imagine this
space to be, it’s exciting to explore the
possibilities. Other districts that offer a culinary
program state it is always oversubscribed. Mrs.
Faulenbach stated the financial piece is important
too. Mr. McCauley stated Shepaug just won 2nd
place in the country at FFA in culinary.

E. | NES Roof E. NES Roof

Mr. Cunningham stated they had a meeting with
the Mayor and Chairperson of MBC. They
reviewed the 6 options. It is now under the
purview of MBC to make a decision and
depending on that decision it will require the
district to submit for a grant or not. Mr. O’Brien
stated, in previous discussions, the Mayor had




New Milford Board of Education

Facilities Sub-Committee MeetingMinutes

November 12, 2025 6:30pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 5

been leaning towards recovering the roof without
pursuing the state grant. Yesterday, the chair of
MBC read through all 6 options, and in his
opinion was to go with one of the state grant
options. Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the board had a
preference. Mr. O'Brien stated that they originally
favored the standing seam roof, but had no
objection to the more cost-effective asphalt
shingle option, given the age of the building. Mrs.
Faulenbach stated that MBC will make a
recommendation, on record. That decision will be
sent on to Town Council to identify a funding
source for that project. Dr. Parlato stated the
funding source exists, it is listed as Roofing
Projects. Town Council will have to putin a
resolution that it is for the Northville roof, because
that has to be turned into the Department of
Administrative Services (DAS). Mrs. Faulenbach
stated, so the bonding has already been set aside
and to move forward the funding source needs to
be clarified and needs to be captured so there’s a
clear mechanism. This is also needed for
reimbursement. Mrs. Faulenbach stated she is
pleased to see that we have a plan and it will be
vetted and documented so it is clear who is doing
what.

Dr. Parlato stated she will send an email
summarizing everything to Mr. Beebe, Mr.
Cunningham, the Mayor and others. Mr. O’Brien
noted if the state grant option is the one chosen, it
falls on the district.

Mrs. Faulenbach asked what the time frame would
be. Mr. Cunningham stated it would be ideal to
have it done over the summer. There are no
deficiencies but the roof is at the end of life. The
grant portal is only open at the beginning of each
month and there is still the process of awarding to
an architect and developing a scope of work. It’s a
large project that includes hurdles associated with
pre construction reviews. Also, there are only a
handful of companies that are capable of doing
this. Mrs. Faulenbach asked if the funds were
earmarked. Mr. Giovannone stated it is earmarked




New Milford Board of Education Page 6
Facilities Sub-Committee MeetingMinutes

November 12, 2025 6:30pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

for “Roofs” in general, so it will need to be carved
out for Northville specifically. Mr. Cunningham
stated the state looks for your local funding source
the date that it was approved and that date dictates
your reimbursement rate. So if this money was
approved two years ago, the state may require the
minutes from that meeting, then town clerks
stamped results of the budget process and that
budget vote, and that may be the inception of the
local funding source date. The reimbursement rate
will be as of that day. Mrs. Faulenbach stated if
the line item reads just “roofing” the state will
want it to be more specific. Mr. Cunningham
agreed and stated they asked the town to be more
specific for Northville. The application process
will slow down without specifics. It also has cost
estimates associated with that and that is necessary
when you upload information to the portal. The
state wants to make sure the cost estimates line up
with the money allocated for the project. Mrs.
Faulenbach stated if the district is doing the
paperwork for the reimbursement, it would be
helpful to know when it was identified, how it was
identified, and what has been carved out from that.
It would be a shame to have us come all this way
and we get held up. Mr. O’Brien stated he
believed that process was clearly understood
among everyone in yesterday's meeting. Mrs.
Faulenbach stated, moving forward, we need to
understand the funding identification, how much,
where, when and what to have that ready. Mr.
Cunningham stated he will reach out to the state to
ensure it is known what is needed

Mr. O’Brien asked if the RFP will go out after the
grant paperwork is submitted. Mr. Cunningham
stated at that point MBC will have to decide how
they will do the A&E. It would be advantageous
to utilize a firm that is familiar with the grant
process. They will help shepherd us through all
this, the more schooled they are, the more they can
assist with all the necessary documentation. Mr.
O’Brien asked if MBC will be sending the RFP.
Mr. Cunningham stated when the high school roof
was done, that was the process. MBC did the RFP
for the high school and then did a change order to




New Milford Board of Education

Facilities Sub-Committee MeetingMinutes

November 12, 2025 6:30pm

Sarah Noble Intermediate School Library Media Center

Page 7

hire Silver Petrucelli as the architect for hire. In
the end this is still a town funded project. Mr.
Cunningham stated he would be happy to develop
the scope for the A&E and RFP, but it would be
on the town to hire and acquire those services. The
district paid for the roof study. Mrs. Faulenbach
stated that was a valuable thing to do to get the
project started.

4. Public Comment Public Comment
None
5. Adjourn Adjourn
Mprs. Faulenbach moved to adjourn the meeting at | Motion made and passed
7:07 pm, seconded by Mr. McCauley and passed unanimously to adjourn the
unanimously. meeting at 7:07 pm.
Respectfully submitted:

WﬂW

Tom O’Brien

Chairman, Facilities Subcommittee




